
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84048073520


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84048073520
mailto:tgallentine@solanowdb.org


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84048073520
mailto:tgallentine@solanowdb.org




 

1 

MINUTES 

PLANNING & OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE MEETING 

February 25, 2020 

 

I. Welcoming/Convening 

Committee Chair, Paul Castro, called the meeting to order at 3:07 p.m.  Quorum of voting 

members was established. 

 

Members Present:  Anne Cardwell, Kim Beiner Paul Castro, Fadi Halabi  

   

Members Absent:  Dr. Rhuenette Alums, Jerry Huber, Jon Riley, Scott Reynolds 

   

Staff Present:  Marion Aiken, Tammy Gallentine, Heather Henry, Joyce Ugweje 

 

II. Additions and/or Deletions from the Agenda 

There were no additions or deletions from the agenda.  

 

III. Public Comment 

There were no public comments. 

 

IV. Approval of January 8, 2020 Meeting Minutes  

  

MOTION #1 

A motion was made and seconded to approve the minutes. 
(Beiner/Castro) MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 

V.  Updates 

A. Upcoming WDB Policies 

Ms. Henry gave a detailed overview of agenda item V.A. Upcoming WDB Policies, 

which was included as part of the agenda package and incorporated herein. Ms. Henry 

reviewed the timeline and noted the Service Delivery and Fiscal Policy would be larger 

policies and provided a breakdown of items that would make up these policies. It was 

agreed the Fiscal Policy should be reviewed by the Budget Committee first before being 

presented to the Planning & Oversight Committee for final approval.    

 

B. Firewalls and Internal Monitoring 

Ms. Henry reviewed agenda item V.B. Firewalls and Internal Monitoring in detail. Ms. 

Henry noted Workforce Development Board of Solano County (WDB) would provide 

four roles including Fiscal Agent, Staff to the Board, Job Seeker Services and One Stop 

Operator. For WDB to serve as the One Stop Operator, a firewall would need to be put in 

place. Over the next six months, staff will be coming up with a system plan to put a 

firewall and internal monitoring in place. Staff roles will also be evaluated. Staff will 

bring the monitoring model to the committee for discussion. 

 

C. Program Monitoring Results 

Ms. Henry gave a detailed overview of agenda item V.C. Program Monitoring Results. 

A copy of the Final Monitoring Report was provided with the agenda packet. Ms. Henry 

noted the recently approved Bylaws were submitted to the Employment Development 

Department (EDD) to resolve the finding noted within the report as ñFinding Oneò. Items 

under ñFinding Twoò regarding Rapid Response were submitted and resolved. Items 

under ñFinding Threeò are currently being disputed as there are two policies and EDD is 

not being consistent with discipline.  

 



 

2 

Ms. Henry announced that the finding made during the Solano County audit was not 

due to inappropriate spending but instead was due to not meeting the target minimum 

expenditure on youth work experience. The finding was for fiscal year ending 2019. 

The youth program has always been an issue due to low enrollments but there is 

progress. 
 

VI.  Discussion Items 

A. Review and Discussion of Performance Reporting 

Ms. Henry gave an overview of agenda item VI.A Review and Discussion of 

Performance Reporting. Internal staff reports were included as part of the agenda 

package and incorporated herein. Ms. Henry announced the meeting with EDD to review 

current data went well. Data has been added to the AJCC report. The committee agreed 

the current Job Center report looks good. The WIOA Performance Report does reflect a 

slow start with youth numbers. Under the current youth contract with Solano County 

Office of Education (SCOE), enrollment and recruiting are off to a slow start. Staff is 

working with SCOE to provide a better understand of eligibility requirements under 

WIOA. Monitoring results will likely result in a corrective action plan. The committee 

agreed WDB should stick to the contracted timeline and any corrective action plan issued 

and not continue to contract if deficiencies are not corrected. Further, the WIOA 

Performance Report does reflect a decline in training numbers. Customer services 

delivery is currently being reviewed. The Job Connect and Career Track Connect 

programs will be moving under Ms. Joyce Ugweje, Job Seeker Services Manager. Ms. 

Ugweje did announce she recently received approximately 16 new youth enrollments.   

 

B. Discussion of State Proposal to Move Workforce Development Board of Solano 

County to the East Bay Region 

Ms. Henry gave a detailed overview of agenda item VI.B Discussion of State Proposal 

to Move Workforce Development Board of Solano County to the East Bay Region, 

which was included as part of the agenda package and incorporated herein. Ms. Henry 

noted Solano County is politically connected to the North Bay Region. Regionally, 

Vallejo is connected to the East Bay whereas Vacaville is connected to the North Bay. 

The Solano County Administrator suggested staff submit public comment even if it is 

decided WDB is to move to the East Bay just so it is on record. Pros and cons were 

discussed including the possibility of losing some funding.  

 

C. Discussion of the Self-Sufficiency Policy 

Ms. Henry gave a detailed overview of agenda item VI.C Discussion of the Self-

Sufficiency Policy, which was included as part of the agenda package and incorporated 

herein. Ms. Henry noted WDB can set the self-sufficiency model higher than that 

standard model provided. Staff and the committee agreed a review of the current model 

needs to be done and a minimum wage hike should be considered. Staff will obtain 

current numbers and model to discuss with the committee in the near future. Local 

parameters can be added to the policy. 

 

D. Discussion of Child Care in Solano County 

Ms. Henry gave a detailed overview of agenda item VI.D Discussion of Child Care in 

Solano County, which was included as part of the agenda package and incorporated 

herein. Ms. Henry noted there are only enough available childcare slots for about 17% of 

the children that need it. First 5 Solano requested to provide a presentation at the next 

Board meeting to possibly partner and start a community initiative building business 

opportunities. 

 

 

2



 

3 

VII. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 4:45 p.m. 

 

Note:  The next Planning & Oversight Committee meeting will be announced. 

 

Respectfully submitted by: 

 

_______________________________________________ 

Tammy Gallentine, Executive & Board Support Specialist 

3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA SUBMITTAL 

 

SUBJECT: Discussion and Approval of the On-

the-Job Training Policy COVID-19 

Addendum 1 

MEETING DATE 

June 23, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM 

IV.B 

 

FROM: Heather Henry 

  President/Executive Director 

ACTION REQUIRED 

YES ✓      NO 

ATTACHMENTS 

A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff is recommending that the Planning & Oversight Committee discuss 

and approve the On-the-Job Training Policy, COVID-19 Addendum (Attachment A).  

 

DISCUSSION:  

This change to the On-the-Job Training Policy is a result of novel-coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19). With 

the economic effects of the Shelter in Place Order, staff are finding that businesses are struggling to 

bring back furloughed employees or to hire new employees. The unique nature of the virus and the 

country’s response necessitates continued changes to the Workforce Development Board (WDB) of 

Solano County’s business services model.  

 

In the current policy, OJTs (with the exception of business using OJT for individuals with disabilities) 

requesting more than 50% of reimbursement must come to the Planning and Oversight Committee for 

approval. Staff recommend allowing OJT reimbursements up to 75% for small businesses with less than 

50 employees who can show a negative impact to business operations due to COVID-19 without 

Committee approval. 

 

 

REPORT PREPARED BY  Heather Henry, President/Executive Director 

Please contact Heather at 707-863-3501 if you have any 

questions regarding this report.  

 

 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Heather Henry, President/Executive Director 

4



 

 

 

POLICY ADDENDUM 

Date: July 17, 2020 Number: 2018-07, Addendum 1 
 

 

ON THE JOB TRAINING POLICY 

COVID-19 ADDENDUM 1 

 

INTRODUCTION 
This policy addendum adds exceptions and changes to the WIOA On-the-Job Training 
Policy for enrolled Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) participants under 
the Adult and Dislocated Worker grants during the period of the novel-coronavirus 2019 
(COVID-19). This policy change will be in effect until the policy change has been 
rescinded.  
 

QUESTIONS 
Questions relating to this addendum should be directed to Marion Aiken, Workforce 
Services Director, at maiken@solanowdb.org or at (707) 863-3594. 
 

POLICY CHANGES 
COVID-19 has created a stronger need for supports for businesses as a result of the 
economic hardship created for our local small businesses as a result of the Shelter in 
Place Orders and social distancing requirements. The unique nature of the virus and the 
country’s response necessitates changes to the Workforce Development Board (WDB) 
of Solano County’s business service delivery model. 
 
Policy changes are made to the contract parameters section and the allowability of 
reimbursement to businesses up to 75%. All other stipulations of the On-the-Job Training 
Policy not addressed in this Policy Change shall remain in effect. 

 

CONTRACT PARAMETERS 
During the COVID-19 pandemic and lasting economic impact to the community, contract 
reimbursement rates may be increased to 75% if employers with less than 50 
employees are bringing back previously furloughed employees or hiring new 
employees who can show COVID-19 has had a negative impact on their business 
operations. All other contracts proposed at 75% reimbursement must be approved by 
the Planning and Oversight Committee of the Workforce Development Board. Factors 
used when increasing the wage reimbursement level from 50% to 75% must be 
documented by staff and included in the contract file. 
 
Documentation must include a case note stating the size of the employer and how 
COVID-19 has negatively impacted their business. 

5

ATTACHMENT A

mailto:maiken@solanowdb.org


 

 

 

DISCLAIMER 
This addendum is based on the current conditions relating to the COVID-19 virus and will 
remain in effect until further notice and will be reviewed and updated based on any 
additional federal or state guidance. 
 

REFERENCES   
Law 

• Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014 (WIOA), Title 1, Section 170 
 

Federal Guidance 

• Training and Employment Guidance Letter WIOA (TEGL) 19-16 – Guidance on 
Services provided through the Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs under 
WIOA 

 

Approved by        

Workforce Development Board of Solano County 

6

https://www.congress.gov/113/bills/hr803/BILLS-113hr803enr.pdf
https://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/attach/TEGL/TEGL_19-16.pdf
https://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/attach/TEGL/TEGL_19-16.pdf
https://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/attach/TEGL/TEGL_19-16.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA SUBMITTAL 

 

SUBJECT: Review and Approval of the Revised 

Supportive Services and Incentives 

Policy and Revised COVID-19 

Addendum 1 

MEETING DATE 

June 23, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM 

IV.C 

 

FROM: Heather Henry 

  President/Executive Director 

ACTION REQUIRED 

YES ✓      NO 

ATTACHMENTS 

A & B 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff is recommending that the Planning & Oversight Committee review and 

approve the revised Supportive Services and Incentives Policy (Attachment A) and COVID-19 

Addendum (Attachment B).  

 

DISCUSSION:  

This revision to the Supportive Services Policy is a result of new supportive service funding streams 

and change in federal guidance relating to food as a supportive service. Due to the many little changes 

to the Supportive Services Policy, this revision compiles recent changes to the Policy for a more 

comprehensive policy document.  

 

All changes have been redlined and include: 

• Parameters for supportive service funding with non-WIOA funding 

• Changes to food and follow-up supportive service allowability 

• Minor wording changes for clarification purposes 

 

Due to a revised Supportive Services Policy, the revision to the Supportive Services, COVID-19 

Addendum compiles and replaces previous addendums and aligns the addendum to the new, revised 

policy. No changes in content have been made to the Addendum. The revised addendum simply 

compiles the changes in the COVID-19 addendums and moves the food allowability to the full policy 

instead of being covered in the addendum. 

 

REPORT PREPARED BY                Heather Henry, President/Executive Director 

Please contact Heather at 707-863-3501 if you have any 

questions regarding this report.  

 

 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Heather Henry, President/Executive Director 

7



1 
 

 

POLICY ISSUANCE 

Date:  July 17, 2020    Number: 2020-04 
 

 

SUPPORTIVE SERVICES AND INCENTIVES POLICY 

 

INTRODUCTION 

This policy provides guidance to the Workforce Development Board (WDB) of Solano County in 

providing supportive services that are necessary to enable Workforce Innovation and Opportunity 

(WIOA) eligible individuals enrolled in the Adult, Dislocated Worker and Youth programs. These 

services are provided to enrolled participants who cannot afford to pay for such services, in order 

to participate in authorized WIOA activities to successfully accomplish their training and/or 

employment goals. WIOA regulations allow Workforce Development Boards to establish limits 

on the provision of supportive services, including a maximum amount of funding and maximum 

length of time for such services available to enrolled WIOA participants.  

Supportive services may be funded through other revenue sources. Additional supportive services 

will follow the guidance in this policy, unless otherwise allowableidentified by the by the grant 

program.specific funding stream.  Other funding sources may be used to provide supportive 

services beyond those allowable in this policy guidanceper WIOA guidance if allowable under the 

specific funding stream. 

QUESTIONS 

Questions relating to this policy should be directed to Marion Aiken, Workforce Services Manager, 

at maiken@solanowdb.org or at (707) 863-3594. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

• Attachment A:  WIOA Youth 14-Elements  

RESCISSIONS 

This policy replaces and cancels the 2018-09 Supportive Services and Incentives Policy. 

POLICY 

Supportive services are provided to eligible WIOA Adults, Dislocated Workers and Youth when 

the supportive service will assist the participant with reaching his/her employment and training 

goals. Supportive services are based on need and participants are not automatically entitled 

to supportive services. 

Supportive services may be made available to any Adult, Dislocated Worker, or Youth 

participating in Title I career services or training activities that is unable to obtain supportive 

services through other programs providing such services. Additionally, the supportive services 

must be necessary to enable the individual to participate in career services or training activities.  

8

ATTACHMENT A

mailto:maiken@solanowdb.org


2 
 

Supportive services may not be used to extend the date of exit for performance accountability 

purposes. Supportive services, like follow-up services, do not make an individual a participant nor 

extend participation.   

SUPPORTIVE SERVICE ELIGIBILITY 

All support services are administered through WIOA staff. The use of these funds is based on 

funding availability. It is the responsibility of staff to ensure allowable, reasonable, and appropriate 

utilization of supportive service funds and determine if such assistance is available through other 

community service providers.   

Supportive services may be provided to eligible WIOA participants who are enrolled in WIOA 

career or training services and Aare unable to obtain the supportive service through any other 

resource or program providing such services. 

 

 

WIOA supportive service funding may only be provided to WIOA Youth participants (not for 

WIOA Adult and Dislocated Worker participants) participants who have Have exited and need 

post-program supportive services as follow-up services (for up to 12 months after exit); and,. 

WIOA Adult and Dislocated Worker participants are not eligible for post-program supportive 

services. 

1. Are unable to obtain the supportive service through any other resource or program 

providing such services. 

 

WIOA supportive services are limited and must be coordinated with other community resources. 

In every instance of providing supportive services, staff must ensure that no other resource exists, 

that the resource is not readily available, or that the need is so urgent that referrals to other 

resources would delay the provision of the support service and create a hardship to the participant.  

 

Supportive services may be utilized to assist in the participation of the following WIOA career 

services and training activities for Adults and Dislocated Workers: 

 

• Career services: 

o Comprehensive and specialized assessments 

o Development of an Individual Employment Plan (IEP) or Individual Service 

Strategy (ISS) 

o Group counseling 

o Individual counseling 

o Career planning 

o Short-term prevocational services 

o Internships and work experiences 

o Workforce preparation activities 

o Financial literacy services 

o Out-of-area job search assistance and relocation assistance 

o English language acquisition and integrated education and training programs 

o Follow-up services, including counseling regarding the workplace, for 

participants who are placed in unsubsidized employment (for WIOA Youth 

9



3 
 

only) 

 

 

• Training activities: 

o Occupational skills training 

o On-the-Job Training 

o Incumbent worker training 

o Programs that combine workplace training with related instruction 

o Training programs operated by the private sector 

o Skill upgrading and retraining 

o Entrepreneurial training 

o Transitional jobs 

o Job readiness training or adult education and literacy activities provided in 

combination with services described above 

o Customized training  

 

PROVISION OF SUPPORTIVE SERVICES 

Supportive Services Assessment and Planning 

WIOA program staff must determine and document supportive service needs during the initial 

objective assessment. As part of the assessment and IEP/ISS development, staff should develop a 

plan with the individual for how barriers will be addressed. The planning process must include 

exploration with the customer of viable alternative resources or programs available in the 

community before approval of supportive services funding.  

Explanation of a lack of community resources or that the urgency of the needed service is such 

that referrals to other resources would delay the provision of the support service and create a 

hardship to the participant must be evident in CalJOBS case notes and in the participant file. 

Participant files must adequately document that all supportive services are allowable, reasonable, 

justified, and, when feasible, not otherwise available to the participant. Files must show evidence 

of referrals to other resources, including, when feasible, outcomes of the referral. 

Requesting Supportive Services 

Supportive service requests should be initiated as part of the IEP/ISS plan or through a request 

from the participant. Supportive service requests should be based on the barriers identified within 

the initial intake and/or IEP/ISS. If a participant requests supportive services beyond barriers 

originally identified, the participant must provide justification for a change in barriers to the staff. 

Staff should document this change in a case note.  

Staff must maintain a supportive service tracking log located in the participant's file that tracks the 

date of the service, type of service, amount of the service disbursed to the participant, and a current 

total of supportive services spent-to-date.  

All supportive services are additionally contingent upon the customer's satisfactory performance 

while participating in and completing WIOA career services or training activities, as well as upon 

available funding. To maintain satisfactory performance, a customer who is in training must 

maintain good attendance and passing grades and follow all other program requirements. For a 

10



4 
 

customer who is participating in career services, they must follow program requirements, including 

active participation during the period of supportive service delivery.  

ALLOWABLE SUPPORTIVE SERVICES 

Funds for supportive services are intended to support customers’ efforts in training or career 

services or to assist with job placement needs. These funds are not intended to fully cover all costs 

associated with certain activities, rather to reduce barriers to such activities. Staff may only 

approve funds for the types of supportive services and amounts described in this policy. The 

Executive Director or Division Manager must approve all requests for services or costs that exceed 

the limits in this policy and may make exceptions to this policy on a case by case basis. Detailed 

information on supportive service requests and process must be outlined in procedural documents. 

The WDB recognizes the following types of allowable supportive services: emergency assistance, 

employability and training assistance, and needs-related payments. 

Emergency Assistance 

A participant may receive Emergency Assistance during WIOA participation if the support is 

determined necessary to facilitate or continue participation in WIOA-funded activities. When 

emergency assistance is provided, there must be a reasonable expectation that the assistance will 

resolve the situation and that support is not accessible through other community means. 

Emergency assistance should only be issued once individuals have applied for applicable 

government or community benefits, unless the need is so urgent that referrals to other resources 

would delay the provision of the support service and create a hardship to the participant. If a 

participant is not deemed eligible for emergency assistance programs, WIOA can provide 

assistance through supportive service funds. If a participant is deemed eligible for emergency 

assistance programs, WIOA can provide assistance through supportive service funds until the 

benefit program begins. Emergency Assistance supportive services are based on funding 

availability and are not an entitlement. 

Assistance may include, but is not limited to:  

1. Food Assistance – Food assistance can be provided in the form of grocery cards. Food 

assistance may not exceed $50 a week for single individuals or $100 a week for families. 

Individuals must apply for CalFresh benefits before this emergency assistance is given. 

(Note: Food assistance is only allowable for WIOA Youth participants.) 
 

2. Health Care and Medical Services – These services are generally of a one-time nature or 

for a set period, such as prescription drugs, prescription eyeglasses, immediate dental care, 

and mental health care, which are needed to enable an individual to effectively participate 

in activities. 

 

3. Housing – Housing assistance includes one-time supportive service payments for rent or 

mortgage assistance. Participant should have a plan for how they will fund the following 

month’s housing. When supportive service funds are used to pay this expense, 

documentation must be in the participant's file that verifies the address and rental amount. 

11



5 
 

Housing assistance may not exceed $2,000. Other types of housing assistance may be 

available. All housing assistance supportive service requests must be approved by the 

Executive Director or Division Manager in advance. 

 

4. Utilities – One month’s payment of utilities is an allowable expense. Other assistance 

programs must be explored before utilizing WIOA funding for utilities, such as the Low-

Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP). Participant should have a plan for 

how they will fund the following month’s utilities. Utility assistance may not exceed $300. 

Employability and Training Assistance  

A participant may receive Employability and Training Assistance during WIOA participation if 

the support is determined necessary to: a) facilitate or continue participation or b) maintain or 

increase employability. When such assistance is provided, there must be a reasonable expectation 

that the assistance will allow the participant to complete training and/or obtain employment.  

Assistance may include, but is not limited to:  

1. Transportation Assistance – Staff may provide transportation assistance to participants 

for them to complete WIOA activities, such as job readiness activities, training, or initial 

employment. In the case of initial employment support, participants may receive 

transportation through their second paycheck. 

 

a. Public Transportation Assistance – Program staff may issue a public transportation 

card, pass or tokens not to exceed $20 per day with a maximum of $1,000 per 

customer per six-month period. Customers may also be issued reimbursement funds 

for public transportation costs to and from employment and training sites.   

 

b. Private Transportation Assistance – Customers may be reimbursed for driving 

expenses in the amount of the federal business mileage rate as set by the US Internal 

Revenue Service for mileage reimbursements to and from training sites, required 

employment or training-related appointments, interviews, or employment/work 

experience sites. Participants may also claim the cost of bridge tolls required to 

reach their approved destination. Any mileage over 20 miles per day round trip plus 

tolls are reimbursable up to a maximum of $1,000 per customer per six-month 

period. Gas cards may be distributed in advance for transportation emergencies – 

the process for approval must be outline in procedural documents. 

 

c. Automotive Repairs – Customers may receive a one-time reimbursement or 

payment directly to the vendor for automotive repairs. Automotive repairs are 

approved on a case-by-case basis and require the Division Manager and or 

Executive Director’s approval. The repair of an automobile must be necessary to 

enable a participant to attend training or employment. When supportive service 

funds are used to pay this expense, documentation must be in the participant's file 

12



6 
 

that verifies the repair needed and amount. The maximum allowable for automotive 

repairs of $1,000. 

 

2. Child/Dependent Care Assistance – Child and dependent care assistance is a supportive 

service provided to participants if it is determined that without it a participant will not be 

able to participate in services or transition to employment. Childcare assistance may be 

provided to participants with children age twelve years or younger, or for a child/dependent 

is mentally and/or physically disabled and requires adult care. Childcare assistance will not 

be provided when a competent adult (over the age of 18 years) residing at the same address 

as the participant is available to provide childcare. Full-time childcare is defined as five (5) 

or more hours per day; while part-time childcare is less than five (5) hours per day.  

 

The WDB uses a direct-referral method with Solano Family & Children Services (SFCS), 

a private, non-profit Child Care Resource & Referral Agency. SFCS provides services and 

support to parents, childcare providers, and community members in Solano County. 

Child/dependent care services shall be paid upon receipt of monthly invoices covering 

specified periods of care and will be paid up to a maximum of $36.00 per day per infant or 

child, not to exceed $2,500 per customer per six-month period.  

 

Child/dependent care referral agreements shall be authorized for a maximum of ten weeks; 

they can be renewable if needed (the need must be documented in case notes) and no other 

support assistance is available. Payment will be based on customer’s attendance; the 

applicable rate will be paid for each day of participation.  

Childcare invoices will be paid only with the submission of documentation that includes 

verification from SFCS regarding the number of hours of care and that the hours 

correspond with the hours in the work experience/training activity. 

3. Medical Services – These services are directly related to employment or training 

outcomes, and include medical services necessary to successfully complete training, gain 

licensure or certification, or obtain employment. Services include a physical examination 

or drug testing for employment or training purposes. 

 

4. Tools – Tools may be purchased for participants if the tools are required to continue a 

training program or obtain employment. Staff must determine that the tools are required 

and that they cannot be provided by any other source, such as the prospective employer or 

training provider. Staff may provide financial assistance up to $600. Customers must be 

enrolled in training or have a firm employment offer before this expense can be approved 

by staff.  

5. Work/Training Costs – Financial assistance will be limited to an amount not to exceed 

$600 per customer for these items. The items must be for a work or training related activity. 

Examples include, but are not limited to, uniforms, books, educational testing or 

accommodations, scrubs, stethoscope, protective eye gear, blood pressure cuff, work or 

13



7 
 

training-related licenses and permits, application fees, payments and fees for employment 

and training-related applications/tests/certifications, union dues or industry membership 

fees, and interview attire. 

6. Supportive Services Other – Other supportive services may be provided as needed. Such 

goods and services should be reasonable and necessary for the participant to remain in 

training and/or obtain or retain employment. These services may include, but are not 

limited to:  

i. Haircuts, personal grooming and hygiene needs;  

ii. Bonding and liability insurance for employment (for instances where EDD 

bonding is not available);  

iii. Internet services for distance learning purposes; 

iv. Financial counseling or assistance;  

v. Translation services;  

vi. Legal aid services; 

vii. Linkages to community services, such as alcohol/drug/gang intervention 

counseling, drop-out prevention, pregnancy prevention, money 

management, tutoring, or other purposes; 

viii. Auxiliary aides and services for participants with disabilities; and 

ix. Reasonable accommodations for individuals with disabilities.  

 

NOTE: Training related expenses for WIOA eligible adults or older youth that may be covered by 

an Individual Training Account do not count against the supportive services limit for each 

registered participant. ITA related training expenses may include but are not limited to assistance 

with the purchase of tools required for a specific course; current school admission fees, computer 

and lab fees; and books and supplies. 

Needs-Related Payments 

WIOA Sec. 134(d) defines Needs-Related Payments as supportive services for individuals enrolled 

in training services only. Needs-Related Payments can help individuals meet their non-training 

expenses and help them to complete training successfully. Funds may be used for Adults and 

Dislocated Workers who are unemployed and do not qualify for (or who have ceased to qualify 

for) unemployment compensation for the purposes of enabling individuals to participate in training 

programs.  

Training services eligible for Needs-Related Payments are as follows: 

• occupational skills training, including programs that combine workplace training                      

with related instruction, which may include cooperative education programs; 

• training programs operated by the private sector; 

• entrepreneurial training; 

• job readiness training or adult education and literacy activities provided in combination 

with any of the three training services above; 

• Skills upgrading and retraining; and 

• Customized training. 

14



8 
 

 

A Dislocated Worker who is unemployed and who ceases to qualify for unemployment 

compensation or Trade Readjustment Assistance, or who did not qualify for unemployment 

compensation, may receive Needs-Related Payments. To be eligible, the customer must be 

enrolled in training services: 

• By the end of the 13th week after the most recent layoff that resulted in a determination 

of the worker’s eligibility for employment and training activities or  

• If later, by the end of the 8th week after the worker is informed that a short-term layoff 

will exceed 6 months. 

Needs-Related Payments are a direct stipend to participants to support their living costs during the 

period of occupational training. Participants must have a documented need and complete the 

procedures outlined in procedural documents. Needs-Related Payments are provided up to $100 

per week for a participant lifetime maximum of $1,000. Dislocated Worker payments may not 

exceed the greater of their applicable level of unemployment compensation or, if the worker did 

not qualify for unemployment compensation, an amount equal to the poverty line for an equivalent 

period.  

Eligibility for Needs-Related Payments is determined by household income and family size.  

Households with incomes above the self-sufficiency wage for family size and local area are not 

eligible for Needs-Related Payments. Needs-related payments cannot be issued before a 

participant is registered and enrolled in training; however, if enrolled, Needs-Related Payments 

may be provided to trainees for up to thirty (30) days prior to the start of training. 

Needs-Related Payments have been classified as non-taxable income by the IRS. (See IRS 

Publication 525 – Work-training programs) 

LIMITATIONS AND PAYMENTS 

The supportive services limit is $2,500 for the duration of the customer’s enrollment. The Division 

Manager or Executive Director has the authority to increase this limit on a case-by-case basis if 

additional supportive services allocation would significantly benefit the participant’s ability to 

continue and complete the program. Authorization to increase the supportive service limit above 

$2,500 must be documented in case notes and the participant’s file.  

WIOA Ssupportive service funding s may not be utilized to pay for expenses incurred prior to the 

participant's enrollment into the WIOA program.  

The following costs are disallowed WIOA supportive services:  

• Fines   and   penalties   such as   traffic   violations, late   finance   charges, and   interest 

payments; 

• Taxes; 

• Child support; 

• Bail or restitution; 

• Entertainment including tips; 

• Contributions or donations; 

15



9 
 

• Refundable deposits; 

• Alcohol or tobacco products; 

• Pet food; 

• Items for family members or friends; or 

• Out-of-state job search and relocation expenses.  

 

Procedures must outline a written fiscal process for the distribution and tracking of supportive 

service funds. 

 

Supportive service payments should be issued directly to the party providing the service. Any 

supportive services payments paid directly to the vendor/provider must have a receipt from the 

vendor/provider that clearly shows the amount that was paid. Supportive service funds may also 

be reimbursed to the participant, provided prior authorization and proper documentation is 

received to verify funds were used for their intended purpose. Reimbursement payments will be 

made only with the submission of original or scanned and legible sales receipts that show 

itemization of the service and products provided, or in the case of mileage, through the submission 

of a mileage tracking form.  

 

Supportive services in the form of gift pre-paid cards may be provided to the participant in 

advance, if financial or urgent need is demonstrated and documented in the participant’s file. Fixed 

amount gift cards for a specific purpose given in advance do not require provision of receipts from 

the participant; however, follow up communication of use of gift pre-paid cards should be case 

noted in the participant’s file.  

 

INCENTIVES FOR YOUTH 

Incentives are allowable for WIOA Youth participants only. Incentives are payments that are based 

on a participant’s attendance and/or performance. The milestones allowable for incentive 

payments must be outlined in procedural documents and must correspond to the 14 Program 

Elements for Youth Programs (See Attachment A). 

 

For incentive payments, staff must have copies of awards of attainments, such as certificates or 

diplomas, or other documentation verifying successful completion of the activity. Case notes must 

document why the inventive was provided, the amount of the incentive, and the date the participant 

received the incentive. 

 

DISCLAIMER 

This policy is based on WDB’s interpretation of the statute, along with the Workforce Innovation 

and Opportunity Act; Final Rule released by the U.S. Department of Labor and federal and state 

policies relating to WIOA implementation. This policy will be reviewed and updated based on any 

additional federal or state guidance. 

 

REFERENCES  

Law 

• Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) of 2014  

 

16



10 
 

Federal Guidance 

• Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Final Rule:  20 CFR Part 680-900 -910 

(Adult & Dislocated Worker) and 20 CFR Part 681-570 (Youth) 

• Training and Employment Guidance Letter WIOA (TEGL) 19-16 – Guidance on 

Services Provided through the Adult and Dislocated Worker Programs under WIOA 

• TEGL 21-16 – Third WIOA Title I Youth Formula Program Guidance 

 

State Guidance 

• Workforce Service Directive (WSD) 17-07 – WIOA Youth Program Requirements  

 

Approved by       

Workforce Development Board of Solano County

17

https://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/corr_doc.cfm?DOCN=3851
https://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/corr_doc.cfm?DOCN=3851
https://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/corr_doc.cfm?DOCN=7159
https://www.edd.ca.gov/jobs_and_training/pubs/wsd17-07.pdf


11 
 

ATTACHMENT A:  WIOA Youth 14 Program Elements 

1. Tutoring, study skills training, instruction, and evidence-based dropout prevention and 

recovery strategies that lead to completion of the requirements for a secondary school 

diploma or its recognized equivalency (including a recognized certificate of attendance or 

similar document for individuals with disabilities) or for a recognized postsecondary 

credential.  

2. Alternative secondary school services, or dropout recovery services, as appropriate.  

3. Paid and unpaid work experiences that have as a component academic and occupational 

education may include: 

 a. Summer employment opportunities 

 b. Opportunities available throughout the school year  

 c. Pre-apprenticeship programs  

 d. Internships and job shadows  

 e. On-the-job training opportunities  

4. Occupational skills training which includes priority consideration for training programs that 

lead to recognized postsecondary credentials that are aligned with in-demand industry sectors 

or occupations in the local area involved. 

5. Education offered concurrently with an in the same context as workforce preparation 

activities and training for a specific occupation or occupational cluster.  

6. Leadership development opportunities, including community service and peer centered 

activities encouraging responsibility and other positive social and civic behaviors.  

7. Support Services are services that enable an individual to participate in WIOA activities.  

8. Adult Mentoring  

9. Follow-up services for not less than 12 months after the completion of participation.  

10. Comprehensive guidance and counseling, which may include drug and alcohol abuse 

counseling and referrals to counseling, as appropriate to the needs of the individual youth.  

11. Financial literacy education  

12. Entrepreneurial skills training  

13. Services that provide labor market and employment information about in-demand industry 

sectors or occupations available in the local area, such as career awareness, career 

counseling, and career exploration services.  

14. Activities that help youth prepare for and transition to post-secondary education and training. 

18



 

 
 

 

 

 

EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT AND UNDERSTANDING FOR: 

SUPPORTIVE SERVICES AND INVENTIVES POLICY 

(Issued November 16, 2018July 17, 2020) 

 

 

The Workforce Development Board (WDB) of Solano County’s Supportive Services and 

Incentives Policy contains important information pertaining to my employment and duties 

at the WDB. 

A copy of this policy has been given to me to retain for future reference, and I have been 

provided with the location on the Shared Drive for the policy where I can obtain an 

electronic copy.   

Since the information and policies described in the policy are necessarily subject to 

change, I acknowledge that revisions to the policy may occur.  All such changes will be 

communicated through official notices. I under that revised information may supersede, 

modify, or eliminate existing policies. 

I have received the Supportive Services and Incentives Policy and I understand that it is 

my responsibility to read and comply with the information contained in this policy and any 

revisions made to it. 

I understand that I should consult my supervisor if I have any questions about the 

information contained in the policy. I understand that failure to comply with the information 

contained in the policy could lead to disciplinary action or termination. 

 

Employee’s Name (printed):  ______________________________________________ 

 

Employee’s Signature:  ______________________________ Date:  ______________ 

 

19



 

 

 

POLICY ADDENDUM 

Date: July 17, 2020 Number: 2020-04, Addendum 1 
 

 

SUPPORTIVE SERVICES AND INCENTIVE POLICY 

COVID-19 ADDENDUM 1 

 

INTRODUCTION 
This policy addendum adds exceptions and changes to the WIOA Supportive Services 
and Incentive Policy for enrolled Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) 
participants under the Adult and Dislocated Worker grants during the period of the novel-
coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19). This policy change will be in effect until the policy change 
has been rescinded.  
 

QUESTIONS 
Questions relating to this addendum should be directed to Marion Aiken, Workforce 
Services Director, at maiken@solanowdb.org or at (707) 863-3594. 
 

RESCISSIONS 
This COVID-19 Addendum combines, replaces, and cancels the 2018-09 Supportive 
Services and Incentive Policy, Addendums 1 and 2. 
 

POLICY CHANGES 
COVID-19 has created a stronger need for supportive service delivery as a result of 
multiple layoffs and social distancing requirements. The unique nature of the virus and 
the country’s response necessitates changes to the Workforce Development Board 
(WDB) of Solano County’s Supportive Service delivery model. 
 
Policy changes are made to the supportive service eligibility, provision of supportive 
services, allowable supportive services, and limitations and payments sections. All other 
stipulations of the Supportive Services and Incentive Policy not addressed in this Policy 
Change shall remain in effect. 

 

SUPPORTIVE SERVICE ELIGIBILITY 
WIOA requirements stipulate that staff must determine if supportive service assistance is 
available through other community service providers. In addition, WIOA requirements 
stipulate that staff must ensure that no other resource exists, that the resource is not 
readily available, or that the need is so urgent that referrals to other resources would 
delay the provision of the support service and create a hardship to the participant. 
 

20

ATTACHMENT B

mailto:maiken@solanowdb.org


 

 

During the period of the COVID-19 pandemic and declared State of Emergency, many 
service providers are closed to the public and unable to provide the resources normally 
provided. In other cases, the waitlist for community resources has increased dramatically. 
As such, COVID-19 and the Shelter in Place orders current in effect are allowable 
justification that resources are not readily available or that the need is so urgent that 
referrals to other resources would delay the provision of the support service. 
 

PROVISION OF SUPPORTIVE SERVICES 
Supportive Services Assessment and Planning 
During the COVID-19 pandemic, staff may use “Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, a 
declared State of Emergency, and Shelter at Home Orders, a general lack of community 
resources exist and a hardship to the participant without immediate supportive services 
would be imminent” as their explanation of a lack of community resources/urgency of 
supportive services in CalJOBS and in the participant file. 
 
Requesting Supportive Services 
Given the nature of the COVID-19 pandemic, many supportive service plans initiated 
during the Individual Employment Plan/Individual Service Strategies will have changed 
as a result of the pandemic. Staff may reach out to participants to assess if new supportive 
service plans are needed during COVID-19. 
 
Many training providers are closed during the Shelter at Home orders during COVID-19. 
The requirement for participants in training to maintain good attendance in order to 
maintain supportive service delivery is waived if a participant’s training provider is closed 
due to COVID-19. 
 

ALLOWABLE SUPPORTIVE SERVICES 
Emergency Assistance 
Emergency assistance parameters for participants are modified during COVID-19. Due 
to the State of Emergency and Shelter at Home Orders, any participant unable to work 
during the Shelter at Home is eligible for emergency assistance if determined necessary 
and reasonable during the supportive services assessment. The following requirements 
for emergency supportive services are waived during COVID-19: 

• Reasonable expectation that emergency assistance supportive services will 
resolve the situation and is not accessible via other community means; 

• Individuals must apply for government or community benefits, since the need is so 
urgent during COVID-19 that referrals to other resources would delay the provision 
of the support service and create a hardship to the participant; 

• Food assistance supportive service recipients must apply for CalFresh benefits 
before this emergency assistance is given; and 

• Housing emergency assistance recipients must have a plan for how they will fund 
the following month’s housing; and. 

 
Housing Assistance 
Due to the stay-at-home order in Solano County lasting over one month and the inability 
for many individuals to obtain or retain work during this time, this policy is modified during 

21



 

 

COVID-19 to allow housing assistance for up to two months for rent or mortgage 
assistance. Housing assistance may not exceed $2,000 per month, for a total of $4,000. 
 
Utilities Assistance 
Due to the stay-at-home order in Solano County lasting over one month and the inability 
for many individuals to obtain or retain work during this this, this policy is modified during 
COVID-19 to allow utilities assistance for up to two months. Utilities assistance may not 
exceed $300 per month, for a total of $600. 
  
Employability and Training Assistance 
WIOA requirements stipulate that there must be a reasonable expectation that the 
supportive service assistance will allow the participant to complete training and/or obtain 
employment. Under this Policy Change, participants enrolled in training before the Solano 
County Shelter at Home Order on March 18, 2020 can continue to receive supportive 
service assistance if needed to keep from dropping out of classes due to financial 
hardship. Dislocated Workers temporarily laid off from employment and who have a 
commitment from their employer to be rehired after the Shelter in Place orders are lifted 
may receive supportive services as part of employability and training assistance until two 
paychecks after their rehire date. 
 
Additional changes: 

• Alternative childcare arrangements will be considered for supportive service 
funding on a case-by-case basis determined by need and other factors. 

• Work/Training Cost limits are increased to $1,000 in order to include the cost of 
sanitation measures or remote service tools needed for work. 

• Internet Service supportive services will be expanded to include internet or phone 
connectivity services in order to obtain or retain employment due to the remote 
nature of the community during COVID-19. 

 

LIMITATIONS AND PAYMENTS 
During the COVID-19 pandemic, the limit of supportive services is increased from $2,500 
for the duration of the participants’ enrollment to $5,000. The Division Manager or 
Executive Director retains the authority to increase this limit on a case-by-case basis if 
additional supportive services allocation would significantly benefit the participant’s ability 
to continue and complete the program. Authorization to increase the limit beyond $5,000 
must be approved have management approval and be documented in case notes in the 
participants file.    
 
Reimbursement payments to participants during the time this Policy Change is in effect 
may be submitted with scanned sales receipts as long as the receipts are legible. 
 

DISCLAIMER 
This addendum is based on the current conditions relating to the COVID-19 virus and will 
remain in effect until further notice and will be reviewed and updated based on any 
additional federal or state guidance. 
 

22



 

 

REFERENCES   
Law 

• Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014 (WIOA), Title 1, Section 170 
 

Federal Guidance 

• Training and Employment Guidance Letter (TEGL) 12-19 – Guidance on National 
Dislocated Worker Grant Program  

 

Approved by        

Workforce Development Board of Solano County, Executive Committee 

23

https://www.congress.gov/113/bills/hr803/BILLS-113hr803enr.pdf
https://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/corr_doc.cfm?DOCN=3851
https://wdr.doleta.gov/directives/corr_doc.cfm?DOCN=3851


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA SUBMITTAL 

 

SUBJECT: Review and Approval of the 

Incumbent Worker Training Policy, 

COVID-19 Addendum 1 

MEETING DATE 

June 23, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM 

IV.D 

 

FROM: Heather Henry 

  President/Executive Director 

ACTION REQUIRED 

YES ✓      NO 

ATTACHMENTS 

A 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff is recommending that the Planning & Oversight Committee review and 

approve the Incumbent Worker Training Policy, COVID-19 Addendum 1 (Attachment A).  

 

DISCUSSION:  

This addendum to the Incumbent Worker Training Policy is a result of novel-coronavirus 2019 (COVID-

19). With the closure of schools due to Shelter in Place Order and social distancing requirements, staff 

are finding that businesses are struggling to complete their Incumbent Worker Training within the 

contracted timeline. The unique nature of the virus and the country’s response necessitates continued 

changes to the Workforce Development Board (WDB) of Solano County’s business services model.  

 

In the current policy, Incumbent Worker Training must be completed within 12 months. This addendum 

waives that requirement if the training timeline has been impacted by COVID-19 training operations.   

 

 

REPORT PREPARED BY Heather Henry, President/Executive Director 

Please contact Heather at 707-863-3501 if you have any 

questions regarding this report.  

 

 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Heather Henry, President/Executive Director 

24



 

 

 

POLICY ADDENDUM 

Date: July 17, 2020 Number: 2018-04, Addendum 1 
 

 

INCUMBENT WORKER TRAINING 

COVID-19 ADDENDUM 1 

 

INTRODUCTION 
This policy addendum adds exceptions and changes to the WIOA Incumbent Worker 
Training (IWT) Policy under Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) during the 
period of the novel-coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19). This policy change will be in effect until 
the policy change has been rescinded.  
 

QUESTIONS 
Questions relating to this addendum should be directed to Marion Aiken, Workforce 
Services Director, at maiken@solanowdb.org or at (707) 863-3594. 
 

POLICY CHANGES 
COVID-19 has required modification of training timelines due to school closures and 
Shelter at Home considerations. As such, during the COVID-19 pandemic, the 
requirement of training being less than 12 months in duration is waived. All other 
stipulations of the Incumbent Worker Training Policy not addressed in this Policy Change 
shall remain in effect. 

 

DISCLAIMER 
This addendum is based on the current conditions relating to the COVID-19 virus and will 
remain in effect until further notice and will be reviewed and updated based on any 
additional federal or state guidance. 
 
 

Approved by        

Workforce Development Board of Solano County, Executive Committee 

25

ATTACHMENT A

mailto:maiken@solanowdb.org


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA SUBMITTAL 

 

SUBJECT: Review and Approval of the Contract 

with Center for Employment 

Opportunities, Inc. to provide 

Comprehensive Services Under the 

Prison to Employment Initiative, not 

to Exceed $52,000 

MEETING DATE 

June 23, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM 

IV.E 

 

FROM: Heather Henry 

  President/Executive Director 

ACTION REQUIRED 

YES ✓      NO 

ATTACHMENTS 

A 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff is recommending that the Planning & Oversight Committee review and 

approve the Contract for recommendation to the full board with Center for Employment Opportunities, 

Inc. to provide Comprehensive Services Under the Prison to Employment Initiative (Attachment A).  

 

 

DISCUSSION:  

The Workforce Development Board (WDB) of Solano County received funds from the California 

Workforce Development Board, passed through the Sonoma Workforce Investment Board as the North 

Bay Regional fiscal agent, to provide services and improvements to justice-involved individuals through 

the Prison to Employment. 

 

The WDB selected the Center for Employment Opportunities (CEO) through a sole source procurement 

to sub-contract transitional employment opportunities for justice-involved individuals as part of this 

initiative. CEO was selected via sole source due to the lack of organizations in Solano County providing 

transitional employment opportunities to justice-involved individuals and the uniqueness of their model. 

 

CEO currently provides transitional jobs and job readiness for justice-involved individuals through the 

CalTrans initiative in Solano County through referrals from Parole and Probation entities. CEO will be 

able to incorporate WDB funding to serve an additional 13 justice involved individuals into their 

program. 

 

 

ALTERNATIVES:  The Board could choose not to approve staff to contract with CEO and instead 

provide staff with direction to conduct a new procurement for services. However, CEO is uniquely 

situated to provide the services required by the Prison to Employment initiative.  

 

 

 

 

26



 

 

 

AGENCY BUDGET IMPACT:  The necessary funding to cover the cost of this contract is included 

in the FY2019-20 and draft FY2020-21 budget through Prison to Employment funds.  

 

 

REPORT PREPARED BY Heather Henry, President/Executive Director 

Please contact Heather at 707-863-3501 if you have any 

questions regarding this report.  

 

 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Heather Henry, President/Executive Director 

27



Workforce Development Board of Solano County Exhibit A 
Scope of Work Contract Number PY-20-003 

Page 1 of 2 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

A. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLITIES 

1. AVAILABILITY TO PERFORM SERVICES

Contractor will: 
i. Provide and train qualified staff in order to plan for and

administer the contracted services; 
ii. Provide services for duration of the Contract; and,
iii. Provide services during scheduled days and/or hours as

appropriate.

2. SERVICE ACTIVITIES

Contractor will: 

i. Provide “earn and learn” services for up to 13 participants
receiving State/County supervision in Solano.

ii. Provide job readiness training through a weeklong class to
prepare participants for full-time employment.

iii. Administer transitional employment by crew-based
maintenance work and on-the-job training with CEO
partners, including Caltrans, for up to four days/weeks with
daily pay and performance feedback.

iv. Implement job coaching with individual weekly coaching
sessions to develop job readiness and practice interview
skills.

v. Maintain and oversee job placement to align with individual
interests and scheduling needs.

vi. Provide post placement retention to participants including,
but not limited to, one year of workplace and career
counseling and financial incentives to support job
retention.

vii. Provide data entry, performance feedback/metrics, and
reporting for participants via CalJOBS and monthly reports
to be mutually determined.

B. RESPONSE TIME - On Call and Emergency Service  

Contractor will be available each week during scheduled conference calls, and on 
an as-needed basis during in-office days. 

C. ADMINISTRATION 

1. Maintenance of Effort
Contractor assures that services provided, and funds received under this
Contract will not supplant existing services or funds allocated for the
same purpose.

28

ATTACHMENT A



Workforce Development Board of Solano County Exhibit A 
Scope of Work Contract Number PY-20-003 

Page 2 of 2 

2. Successors
Should the Contractor sell or otherwise relinquish all or any portion of the
ownership of the Contractor Corporation during the course of this
Contract, any future owner(s) of the corporation will agree to be bound by
the stipulated provisions for the length of the Contract.

3. Time is of the Essence of this Contract
All services to be performed specified under this Contract, including
training must be delivered on or before the ending of date of this
Contract.

29



Workforce Development Board of Solano County Exhibit B 
Project Budget Summary Contract Number PY-20-003 

Page 1 of 1 

Exhibit B 
PROJECT BUDGET SUMMARY 

DOCUMENTATION 
OF DELIVERY 

DELIVERY 
PERIOD 

FEE 

Participant Services – Job Readiness for 
up to 13 clients @ $3,500.00  

August 1, 2020 – 
June 30, 2021 

$45,500.00 

CalJOBS, Data Entry and Performance  August 1, 2020 – 
June 30, 2021 

$6,500.00 

TOTAL 
$52,000.00 

1. The above amounts are contingent upon acceptance of an appropriately working
and usable system and shall be in compensation for all time and expenses incurred
by Contractor. Contractor will not be reimbursed for any out of pocket costs.

2. Contractor shall submit monthly invoices detailing work performed for each
deliverable detailed in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) and amount payable to the
WDB’s Executive Director/President. The payment shall be made only after the
services required under this contract have been performed to the satisfaction of the
Executive Director/President, and the deliverables described in Exhibit A, Scope of
Work have been accepted in writing by the Executive Director/President of his/her
designee.

3. Contractor shall provide any additional documentation as required by WDB at any
time in order to substantiate its claims for payment. WDB may elect to withhold
payment for failure by Contractor to provide such documentation required by WDB.

4. The maximum payment under the terms of this contract shall under no
circumstances, exceed $52,000.00 for the related expenses unless this contract is
modified in accordance with Section XXVI in Exhibit C, “Changes and Amendments”.

30



Workforce Development Board of Solano County Exhibit C 
General Terms and Conditions  Contract Number:  PY-20-002 

Page 1 

 Exhibit C 

Workforce Development Board of Solano County 

General Terms and Conditions 

1. Closing Out
A. The WDB will pay the Contractor’s final request for payment providing Contractor 

has paid all financial obligations undertaken pursuant to this Contract.  If Contractor has failed to 
pay all obligations outstanding, WDB will withhold from the Contractor’s final request for payment, 
the amount of such outstanding financial obligations owed by Contractor. Contractor is 
responsible for WDB’s receipt of a final request for payment 30 days after termination of this 
contract. 

B. A final undisputed invoice shall be submitted for payment no later than ninety (90) 
calendar days following the expiration or termination of this Contract, unless a later or alternate 
deadline is agreed to in writing by the WDB.  The final invoice must be clearly marked “FINAL 
INVOICE”, thus indicating that all payment obligations of the WDB under this Contract have 
ceased and that no further payments are due or outstanding. 

C. The WDB may, at its discretion, choose not to honor any delinquent final invoice if 
the Contractor fails to obtain prior written approval of an alternate final invoice submission 
deadline. Written WDB approval for an alternate final invoice submission deadline shall be sought 
from the WDB prior to the expiration or termination of this Contract. 

2. Time
Time is of the essence in all terms and conditions of this Contract.

3. Time of Performance
Work will not begin, nor claims paid for services under this Contract until all Certificates
of Insurance, business and professional license/certificates, IRS ID number, signed W-9
form, or other applicable licenses or certificates are on file with the WDB’s Planning Unit.

4. Termination
A. This Contract may be terminated by WDB or Contractor, at any time with or without
cause, upon 30 days written notice from one to the other.

B. WDB may terminate this Contract immediately upon notice of Contractor’s
malfeasance.

C. Following termination, WDB will reimburse Contractor for all expenditures made in
good faith that are unpaid at the time of termination not to exceed the maximum amount
payable under this Contract unless Contractor is in default of this Contract.

5. Signature Authority
The parties executing this Contract certify that they have the proper authority to bind their
respective entities to all terms and conditions set forth in this Contract.

6. Representations
A. WDB relies upon Contractor’s professional ability and training as a material
inducement to enter into this Contract.  Contractor represents that Contractor will perform
the work according to generally accepted professional practices and standards and the

31



Workforce Development Board of Solano County Exhibit C 
General Terms and Conditions  Contract Number:  PY-20-002 

Page 2 

requirements of applicable federal, state and local laws.  WDB’s acceptance of 
Contractor’s work shall not constitute a waiver or release of Contractor from professional 
responsibility. 

B. Contractor further represents that Contractor possesses current valid appropriate 
licensure, including, but not limited to driver’s license, professional license, certificate of 
tax-exempt status, or permits, required to perform the work under this Contract. 

7. Insurance
A. Without limiting Contractor’s obligation to indemnify WDB, Contractor must procure
and maintain for the duration of the Contract insurance against claims for injuries to
persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work under this Contract and the results of that work by Contractor,
Contractor’s agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.

B. Minimum Scope of Insurance:
Coverage must be at least as broad as: 
(1)  Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage (occurrence 

Form CG 00 01) 

(2) Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 00 01 covering Automobile 
Liability, code 1 (any auto) 

(3) Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by the State of California 
and Employer’s Liability Insurance. 

C. Minimum Limits of Insurance 
Contractor must maintain limits no less than 

1. General Liability:
(Including operations, 
products 
and completed  
operations.) 

$1,000,000 
per occurrence for bodily injury, 
personal injury and property damage, 
or the full per occurrence limits of the 
policy, whichever is greater.  If 
Commercial General Liability 
insurance or other form with a general 
aggregate limit is used, either the 
general aggregate limit shall apply 
separately to this project/location or 
the general aggregate limit shall be 
twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability:
Aggregate

$1,000,000 
$2,000,000 

per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage 

3. Workers’ Compensation as required by the State of California

4. Employers Liability
Aggregate

$1,000,000 
$2,000,000 

per accident for bodily injury of 
disease.

D. Additional Insurance Coverage 
To the extent coverage is applicable to Contractor’s services under this Contract, 

Contractor must maintain the following insurance coverage: 

32



Workforce Development Board of Solano County Exhibit C 
General Terms and Conditions  Contract Number:  PY-20-002 

Page 3 

1. Cyber Liability: $1,000,000 per incident with the aggregate limit of 
twice the required limit  

2. Professional Liability:
Aggregate

$1,000,000 
$2,000,000 

combined single limit per claim and in 
the aggregate.  The policy shall 
remain in full force and effect for no 
less than 3 years following the 
completion of work under this 
Contract.

E. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, WDB is 
entitled to coverage for the higher limits by Contractor. 

F. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 
Any deductibles or self-insured relations must be declared to and approved by the 

WDB.  At the option of the WDB, either: 

(1)  The insurer will reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions 
with respect to WDB, its officers, officials, agents, employees and volunteers; or; 

(2) Contractor must provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to WDB 
guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and 
defense expenses. 

G. Other Insurance provisions 
The general liability and automobile liability policies must contain, or be endorsed 

to contain, the following provisions: 

(1) The WDB, its officers, officials, agents, employees, and volunteers must be 
included as additional insured with respect to liability arising out of automobiles owned, 
leased, hired or borrowed by or on behalf of Contractor; and with respect to liability arising 
out of work or operations performed by or on behalf of Contractor including materials, 
parts or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations.  General 
Liability coverage shall be provided in the form of an Additional Insured endorsement to 
Contractor’s insurance policy, or as a separate owner’s policy.  The insurance afforded 
to the additional insured shall be at least as broad as that afforded to the first named 
insured. 

(2) For any claims related to work performed under this Contract, Contractor’s 
insurance coverage must be primary insurance with respect to the WDB, its officers, 
agents, employees, or volunteers is excess of Contractor’s insurance and shall not 
contribute to it.  

(3) Should any of the above described policies be cancelled prior to the 
policies’ expiration date, Contractor agrees that notice of cancellation will be delivered in 
accordance with the policy provisions. 

H. Waiver of Subrogation 
(1) Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any insurer of Contractor 

may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of any loss.  Contractor agrees to 
obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation. 

33



Workforce Development Board of Solano County Exhibit C 
General Terms and Conditions  Contract Number:  PY-20-002 

Page 4 

(2) The Workers’ Compensation policy must be endorsed with a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of the WDB for all work performed by Contractor, its employees, 
agents and subcontractors. 

I. Acceptability of Insurers 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less 

than A:VII unless otherwise acceptable to the WDB. 

 J. Verification of Coverage 
(1) Contractor must furnish WDB with original certificates and endorsements 

effecting coverage required by this Contract. 

(2) The endorsements should be on forms provided that conform to the WDB’s 
requirements and acceptable to the WDB. 

(3) WDB must receive and approve all certificates and endorsements before 
work commences. 

(4) However, failure to do so shall not operate as a waiver of these insurance 
requirements. 

(5) WDB reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required 
insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by these 
specifications at any time. 

8. Best Efforts
Contractor represents that Contractor will at all times faithfully, industriously and to the
best of its ability, experience and talent, perform to the WDB’s reasonable satisfaction.

9. Default
A. If Contractor defaults in Contractor’s performance, WDB shall promptly notify
Contractor in writing.  If Contractor fails to cure a default within 30 days after notification
or if the default requires more than 30 days to cure and Contractor fails to commence to
cure the default within 30 days after notification, then Contractor’s failure shall terminate
this Contract.

B. If Contractor fails to cure default within the specified period of time, WDB may elect
to cure the default and any expense incurred shall be payable by Contractor to WDB.

C. If WDB serves Contractor with a notice of default and Contractor fails to cure the
default, Contractor waives any further notice of termination of this Contract.

D. If this Contract is terminated because of Contractor’s default, WDB shall be entitled
to recover from Contractor all damages allowed by law.

10. Indemnification
A. Contractor will indemnify, hold harmless and assume the defense of the WDB, its
officers, employees, agents and board members from all claims, losses, damages,
including property damages, personal injury, death and liability of every kind, directly or
indirectly arising from Contractor’s operations or from any persons directly or indirectly

34



Workforce Development Board of Solano County Exhibit C 
General Terms and Conditions  Contract Number:  PY-20-002 

Page 5 

employed by, or acting as agency for, Contractor, excepting the negligence or willful 
misconduct of the WDB.  This indemnification shall extend to claims, losses, damages, 
injury and liability for injuries occurring after completion of Contractor’s services, as well 
as during the progress of rendering such services. 

B. Acceptance of insurance required by this Contract does not relieve Contractor from 
liability under this indemnification clause.  This indemnification clause shall apply to all 
damages or claims for damages suffered by Contractor’s operations regardless if any 
insurance is applicable or not. 

11. Independent Contractor
A. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an agent, officer or employee of
the WDB.  The parties mutually understand that this Contract is between two independent
contractors and is not intended to and shall not be construed to create the relationship of
agent, servant, employee, partnership, joint venture or association.

B. Contractor shall have no claim against WDB for employee rights or benefits
including, but not limited to, seniority, vacation time, vacation pay, sick leave, personal
time off, overtime, medical, dental or hospital benefits, retirement benefits, Social
Security, disability, Workers’ Compensation, unemployment insurance benefits, civil
service protection, disability retirement benefits, paid holidays or other paid leaves of
absence.

C. Contractor is solely obligated to pay all applicable taxes, withholding, Social
Security, unemployment, disability insurance, Worker’s Compensation and Medicare
payments.

D. Contractor shall indemnify and hold WDB harmless from any liability which WDB
may incur because of Contractor’s failure to pay such obligations, as set forth in this
paragraph, nor shall WDB be responsible for any employer-related costs not otherwise
agreed to in advance between the WDB and the Contractor.

E. As an independent contractor, Contractor is not subject to the direction and control
of the WDB except as to the final result contracted for under this Contract.  WDB may not
require Contractor to change Contractor’s manner of doing business, but may require
redirection of efforts to fulfill this Contract.

F. Contractor may provide services to others during the same period Contractor
provides service to WDB under this contract.

G. Any third persons employed by Contractor shall be under Contractor’s exclusive
direction, supervision and control.  Contractor shall determine all conditions of
employment including hours, wages, working conditions, discipline, hiring and
discharging or any other condition of employment.

H. As an independent contractor, Contractor shall indemnify and hold WDB harmless
from any claims that may be made against WDB based solely on the contention by a third
party that an employer-employee relationship exists under this Contract.  Notwithstanding
this provision, to the extent that any claim, as described in this subsection, is based on
alleged negligence or willful misconduct of WDB, Contractor shall have no duty to
indemnify and hold WBD-SC harmless for that particular claim.

35



Workforce Development Board of Solano County Exhibit C 
General Terms and Conditions  Contract Number:  PY-20-002 

Page 6 

I. Contractor, with full knowledge and understanding of the foregoing, freely, 
knowingly, willingly and voluntarily waives the right to assert any claim to any right or 
benefit or term or condition of employment insofar as they may be related to or arise from 
compensation paid hereunder. 

12. Responsibilities of Contractor
A. The parties understand and agree that Contractor possesses the requisite skills
necessary to perform the work under this Contract and WDB relies upon such skills.
Contractor pledges to perform the work skillfully and professionally.  WDB’s acceptance
of Contractor’s work does not constitute a release of Contractor from professional
responsibility.

B. Contractor verifies that Contractor has reviewed the scope of work to be performed
under this Contract and agrees that the contractor’s professional judgment, the work can
and shall be completed for costs within the maximum amount set forth in this Contract.

C. To fully comply with the terms and conditions of this Contract, Contractor shall:
(1) Establish and maintain a system of accounts for budgeted funds that 

complies with generally accepted accounting principles for government agencies;

(2) Document all costs by maintaining complete and accurate records of all 
financial transactions associated with this Contract, including, but not limited to, invoices 
and other official documentation that sufficiently support all charges under this Contract; 

(3) Submit monthly reimbursement claims for expenditures that are directly 
associated with this contract; 

(4) Be liable for repayment of any disallowed costs identified through quarterly 
reports, audits, monitoring or other sources; and, 

(5) Retain financial, programmatic, client data and other service records for 
three (3) years from the date of the end of the contract award or for three (3) years from 
the date of termination, whichever is later. 

13. Compliance with Law
A. Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local laws and regulations
applicable to Contractor’s performance, including, but not limited to, licensing,
employment and purchasing practices, wages, hours and conditions of employment.

B.  To the extent federal funds are used in whole or in part to fund this Contract,
Contractor specifically agrees to comply with Executive Order 11246 entitled “Equal
Employment Opportunity”, as amended and supplemented in Department of Labor
regulations; the Copeland “Ant-Kickback” Act (18 U.S.C. §874) and its implementing
regulations (29 C.F.R. part 3); the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §7401 et seq.); the Clean
Water Act ( 33 U.S.C. §1251); and the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Pub. L. 94-
165).  

C.  Contractor represents that it will comply with the applicable cost principles and 
administrative requirements including claims for payment or reimbursement by WDB as 

36



Workforce Development Board of Solano County Exhibit C 
General Terms and Conditions  Contract Number:  PY-20-002 

Page 7 

set forth in 2 CFR 200, as currently enacted or as may be amended throughout the term 
of this Contract. 

14. Confidentiality
A. Contractor shall prevent unauthorized disclosure of names and other client-
identifying information, except for statistical information not identifying a particular client.

B. Contractor shall not use client specific information for any purpose other than
carrying out Contractor’s obligations under this Contract.

C. Contractor shall promptly transmit to WDB all requests for disclosure of confidential
information related to this Contract.

D. Except as otherwise permitted by this Contract or authorized by the client,
Contractor shall not disclose any confidential information related to this Contract to
anyone other than the State of California without prior written authorization from WDB.

E. For purposes of this section, identity shall include, but not be limited to, name,
identifying number, symbol or other client identifying particulars, such as fingerprints,
voice print or photography.  Client shall include individuals receiving services pursuant to
this Contract.

15. Conflict of Interest
A. Contractor represents that Contractor and/or Contractor’s employees and/or their
immediate families and/or Board of Directors and/or officers have no interest, including,
but not limited to, other projects or independent contracts, and shall not acquire any
interest, direct or indirect, including separate contracts for the work to be performed
hereunder, which conflicts with the rendering of services under this Contract.  Contractor
shall employ or retain no such person while rendering services under this Contract.
Services rendered by Contractor’s associates or employees shall not relieve Contractor
from personal responsibility under this clause.

B. Contractor has an affirmative duty to disclose to the WDB in writing the name(s) of
any person(s) who have an actual, potential or apparent conflict of interest.

16. Drug Free Workplace
Contractor represents that Contractor is knowledgeable of Government Code section
8350 et seq., regarding a drug free workplace and shall abide by and implement its
statutory requirements.

17. Health and Safety Standards
Contractor shall abide by all health and safety standards set forth by the State of
California.

18. Child/Adult Abuse
If services pursuant to this Contract will be provided to children and/or elder adults,
Contractor represents that Contractor is knowledgeable of the Child Abuse and Neglect
Reporting Act (Penal Code section 11164 et seq.) and the Elder Abuse and Dependent
Adult Civil Protection Act (Welfare and Institutions Code section 15600 et. seq.) requiring
reporting of suspected abuse.

37



Workforce Development Board of Solano County Exhibit C 
General Terms and Conditions  Contract Number:  PY-20-002 

Page 8 

19. Inspection
Authorized representatives of WDB, the State of California and/or the federal government
may inspect and/or audit Contractor’s performance, place of business and or records
pertaining to this Contract.

20. Nondiscrimination
A. In rendering services under this contract, Contractor shall comply with all
applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations and shall not discriminate
based on age, ancestry, color, gender, marital status, medical condition, national origin,
physical or mental disability, race, religion, sexual orientation or other protected status.

B. Further, Contractor shall not discriminate against its employees, which includes
but is not limited to, employment upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or
recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation
and selection for training, including apprenticeship.

21. Subcontractor and Assignment
A. Services under this Contract are deemed to be personal services.

B. Contractor shall not subcontract any work under this Contract nor assign this
Contract or monies due without the prior written consent of the WDB’s Business &
Resource Services Manager, applicable Division Manager or his her designee and the
President/Executive Director subject to any required state or federal approval.

C. If WDB consents to the use of subcontractors, Contractor shall require and verify
that its subcontractor maintain insurance meeting all of the requirements stated in Section
7 above.

D. Assignment by Contractor of any monies due shall not constitute an assignment
of the Contract.

22. Unforeseen Circumstances
Contractor is not responsible for any delay caused by natural disaster, war, civil
disturbance, labor dispute or other cause beyond Contractor’s reasonable control,
provided Contractor gives written notice to WDB of the cause of the delay within ten (10)
days of the start of the delay.

23. Notice
A. Any notice necessary to the performance of this Contract shall be given in writing
by personal delivery or by prepaid first-class mail addressed as stated on the first page
of this Contract.

B. If notice is given by personal delivery, notice is effective as of the date of personal
delivery.  If notice is given by mail, notice is effective as of the day following the date of
mailing or the date of delivery reflected upon a return receipt, whichever occurs first.

24. Nonrenewal
Contractor acknowledges that there is no guarantee that WDB will renew Contractor’s
services under a new contract following expiration or termination of this Contract.
Contractor waives all rights to notice of non-renewal of Contractor’s service.

38



Workforce Development Board of Solano County Exhibit C 
General Terms and Conditions  Contract Number:  PY-20-002 

Page 9 

25. WDB’s Obligation Subject to Availability of Funds
A. The WDB’s obligation under this Contract is subject to the availability of authorized
funds.  The WDB may terminate the Contract, or any part of the Contract work, without
prejudice to any right or remedy to the WDB, for lack of appropriation of funds.  If expected
or actual funding is withdrawn, reduced or limited in any way prior to the expiration date
set forth in this Contract, or any subsequent amendment, the WDB may, upon written
Notice to the Contractor, terminate this Contract in whole or in part.

B. Payment shall not exceed the amount allowable for appropriation by the Board of
Directors of the WDB and ratified by the County of Solano Board of Supervisors (over
$50,000).  If the Contract is terminated for non-appropriation of funds:

i. The WDB will be liable only for payment in accordance with the terms of
this Contract for services rendered prior to the effective date of termination; and, 

ii. The Contractor shall be released from any obligation to provide further
services pursuant to this Contract that are affected by the termination. 

C. Funding for this Contract beyond the current appropriation year is conditional upon 
appropriation by the Board of Directors of the WDB of sufficient funds to support the 
activities described in this Contract.  Should such an appropriation not be approved, this 
Contract will terminate at the close of the current Appropriation Year. 

D. This Contract is void and unenforceable if all or parts of federal or state funds 
applicable to this Contract are not available to the WDB.  If applicable funding is reduced, 
WDB may either: 

(1) Cancel this Contract; or, 
(2) Offer a contract amendment reflecting the reduced funding. 

26. Changes and Amendments
A. WDB may request changes in Contractor’s scope of service.  Any mutually agreed
upon changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount of Contractor’s
compensation, shall be effective when incorporated in written amendments to this
Contract.

B. The party desiring the revision shall request amendments to the terms and
conditions of this Contract in writing.  Any adjustment to this Contract shall be effective
only upon the parties’ mutual execution of an amendment in writing.

C.  No verbal agreements or conversations prior to execution of this Contract or
requested amendment shall affect or modify any of the terms or conditions of this
Contract unless reduced to writing according to the applicable provisions of this Contract.

27. Choice of Law
The parties have executed and delivered this Contract in the County of Solano, State of
California.  The laws of the State of California shall govern the validity, enforceability or
interpretation of this Contract.  Solano County shall be the venue for any action or
proceeding in law or equity that may be brought in connection with this Contract.

39



Workforce Development Board of Solano County Exhibit C 
General Terms and Conditions  Contract Number:  PY-20-002 

Page 10 

28. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
Contractor represents that it is knowledgeable of the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”) and its implementing regulations issued by the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services (45 C.F.R. parts 160-64) regarding the
protection of health information that may be obtained, created, or exchanged as a result
of this Contract and shall abide by and implement its statutory requirements, if applicable.

29. Waiver
Any failure of a party to assert any right under this Contract shall not constitute a waiver
or a termination of that right, under this Contract or any of its provisions.

30. Conflicts in the Contract Documents
The Contract documents are intended to be complementary and interpreted in harmony
so as to avoid conflict.  In the event of conflict in the Contract documents, the parties
agree that the document providing the highest quality and level of service to the WDB
shall supersede any inconsistent term in these documents.

31. Faith Based Organizations
A. Contractor agrees and acknowledges that WDB may make funds available for
programs or services affiliated with religious organizations under the following conditions:

(a) the funds are made available on an equal basis as for programs or services 
affiliated with non-religious organizations; (b) the program funded does not support
religious activities; (c) the organization complies with the terms and conditions of this
Contract.

B. Contractor agrees and acknowledges that WDB may not make funds available for
programs or services affiliated with a religious organization that (a) has denied or
continues to deny access to services on the basis of race, color, religion, ancestry,
national origin, sex, sexual orientation, citizenship, or known disability; (b) will use the
funds for a religious purpose, (c) will use funds for a program or service that subject its
participants to religious education.

C. Contractor agrees and acknowledges that all recipients of funding from WDB must
(a) comply with all legal requirements and restrictions imposed upon government funded
activities set forth in Article IX, section 8 and Article XVI section 5 of the California
Constitution and in the First Amendment to the United States Constitution; and (b)
segregate such funding from all funding used for religious purposes.

32. Pricing
Should Contractor, at any time during the term of this Contract, provide the same goods
or services under similar quantity, terms and conditions to one or more counties in the
State of California at prices below those set forth in this Contract, then the parties agree
to amend this Contract so that such lower prices shall be extended immediately to WDB
for all future services.

33. Use of Provisions, Terms, Conditions and Pricing by Other Public Agencies
Contractor and WDB agree that the terms of this Contract may be extended to any other
public agency located in the State of California, as provided for in this section.  Another
public agency wishing to use the provisions, terms, and pricing of this Contract to contract
for equipment and services comparable to that described in this Contract shall be
responsible for entering into its own contract with Contractor, as well as providing for its

40



Workforce Development Board of Solano County Exhibit C 
General Terms and Conditions  Contract Number:  PY-20-002 

Page 11 

own payment provisions, making all payments, and obtaining any certificates of 
insurance and bonds that may be required.  WDB is not responsible for providing to any 
other public agency any documentation relating this Contract or its implementation.  Any 
public agency that uses provisions, terms, or pricing of this Contract shall be virtue of 
doing so be deemed to indemnify and hold harmless WDB from all claims, demands, or 
causes of actions of every kind arising directly or indirectly with the use of this Contract. 
WDB makes no guarantee of usage by other users of this contract nor shall the WDB 
incur any financial responsibility in connection with any contracts entered into by another 
public agency.  Such other public agency shall accept sole responsibility for placing 
orders and making payments to Contractor. 

34. Disbarment or Suspension of Contractor
A. Contractor represents that its officers, directors and employees (i) are not currently
excluded, debarred or otherwise ineligible to participate in the federal health programs
as defined in 42 WSC 1320a-7b(f) ( the “Federal Healthcare Programs”) or any state
healthcare programs; (ii) have not been convicted of a criminal offense related to the
provision of healthcare items or services but or previously excluded, debarred, or
otherwise declared ineligible to participate in the Federal Healthcare Programs or any
state healthcare programs and (iii) are not, to the best of its knowledge, under
investigation or otherwise aware of any circumstances which may result in Contractor
being excluded for participation in Federal healthcare programs or any state healthcare
programs.

B. This representation and warranty shall be an ongoing representation and warranty 
during the term of this Contract and Contractor must immediately notify the WDB of any 
change in the status of the representation and warranty set forth in this section. 

C. If services pursuant to this Contract involve healthcare programs, Contractor 
agrees to provide certification of non-suspension with submission of each invoice.  Failure 
to submit certification with invoices will result in a delay in WDB processing of 
Contractor’s payment. 

35. Execution of Counterparts
This contract may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts, each of which together
shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same
instrument, it being understood that all parties need not sign the same counterpart.  In
the event that any signature is delivered by facsimile or electronic transmission (e.g., by
email delivery of a “.pdf” format data file), such signature shall create a valid and binding
obligation of the party executing (or on whose behalf such signature is executed) with the
same force and effect as if such facsimile or electronic signature pay were an original
signature.

36. Entire Contract
This Contract, including any exhibits referenced, constitutes the entire agreement
between the parties and there are no inducements, promises, terms, conditions or
obligations made or entered into by WDB or Contractor other than those contained in it.

41














	IV.A Meeting Minutes 022520
	IV.B Approval of OJT Policy COVID Addendum
	IV.B Attachment A
	IV.C Approval of SupportiveServicesIncentivePolicy
	IV.C Attachment A
	IV.C Attachment B
	IV.D Approval of Incumbent Worker Training Policy
	IV.D Attachment A
	IV.E Approval of CEO Contract
	IV.E Attachment A
	Exhibit A- Scope of Work v.2
	Exhibit B -Budget v.1
	Exhibit C - General Terms




